STATE BOARD OF DENTISTRY Minutes June 7, 2024

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Dr. Robert Findley called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. in room W064, Indiana Government Center South, 302 West Washington Street, Indianapolis, Indiana, and https://www.zoomgov.com/j/16076409084 and declared a quorum in accordance with Indiana Code § 25-14-1-12(a).

Board Members Present:

Robert D. Findley, D.D.S., President
Annette J. Williamson, D.D.S., Secretary/Designee
Richard R. Nowakowski, D.D.S.
R. Daron Sheline, D.D.S.
Edward Sammons, D.D.S.
Twyla Rader, L.D.H.
Matthew Kolkman, D.D.S.

Jeffrey L. Snoddy, D.D.S. Crunchy Wells, D.M.D

Tammera Glickman, Consumer Member

Board Members Not Present:

Ted M. Reese, D.D.S., Vice President

State Officials Present:

Cindy Vaught, Board Director, Professional Licensing Agency Dana Brooks, Assistant Board Director, Professional Licensing Agency Bradley Repass, Litigation Specialist, Professional Licensing Agency Leif Johnson, Deputy Attorney General, Office of the Attorney General

The Board members remembered Dr. Ted Reese, Vice President, who passed away unexpectedly. He did a tremendous job and was a tremendous dentist. He was a friend to us all.

II. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

A motion was made and seconded to adopt the agenda as amended.

Nowakowski/Sammons Motion carried 10-0-0

III. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES

The minutes of the April 5, 2024 meeting are still under review.

IV. PERSONAL APPEARANCES

A. PROBATION

1. Christie Oyler, D.D.S., License No. 12011725A

Cause No. 2021 ISBD 0012

Ms. Oyler appeared as requested via zoom to discuss her ongoing probation. She stated that she has moved and has a new address which she reported to the Board, and a new employment at the Miami Correctional Facility. Ms. Oyler provided a letter from Candace Backer, of the Indiana Well-Being Program, which outlines her progress with the program. She discussed her last appearance before the Board when Dr. Miller was present.

2. Brent Swinney, D.D.S., License No. 12010095A

Dr. Swinney appeared to discuss his ongoing probation. He stated that he is still under the mentorship of Dr. Partridge and seeing his therapist Mr. Kelley. He discussed his random drug screenings with the Board and explained the one positive result he incurred. He discussed the steps he took to be retested which were negative. Dr. Swinney stated that matters in his professional and personal life are going well.

B. RENEWAL

1. Benjamin Adams, DDS, License No. 12010430A

Dr. Adams was not present; however, his counsel, Joshua Robinson, represented him in his absence. Dr. Adams was requested to appear to discuss his yes response regarding an arrest since he last renewed. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. Mr. Robinson stated that Dr. Adams is currently incarcerated on Domestic Battery charges. Mr. Robinson discussed the terms of Dr. Adams' court order. He attested that there has been no issue of care with Dr. Adam's patients. Mr. Robinson reported that while Dr. Adams is dealing with his criminal matters, he has another colleague covering his patients. Mr. Robinson provided letters of support for Dr. Adams.

Dr. Bill Adams, his father, appeared as support of his son. Dr. Bill Adams attested to the character of Dr. Bejamin Adams. The Board discussed with Dr. Bill Adams and Mr. Robinson if there was a question of substance use when the arrest occurred. Mr. Robinson stated that they do not have a substance abuse evaluation for Dr. Adams, but they are aware that might have been a factor.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to deny Dr. Adam's application for renewal based upon court conviction.

Kolkman/Rader Motion carried 10-0-0

2. Akeem Ajayi, DDS, License No. 12012006A

Dr. Ajayi appeared as requested with counsel to discuss his yes response regarding his license being investigated or have disciplinary imposed on it since he last renewed. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. Dr. Ajayi informed the Board that poor record keeping occurred and that led to a poor standard of care for the patient. He provided a summary of the procedure and the steps he took to follow up with the patient after the procedure. He stated that this incident occurred in Texas, and the Texas Board did investigate the matter. Dr. Ajayi does not currently practice in the state of Indiana and his Texas license has no discipline.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Dr. Ajayi's dental license.

Kolkman/Sammons Motion carried 10-0-0

3. Mohammed Badahman, DDS License No. 12014229A

Dr. Badahman appeared as requested via zoom to discuss his yes response regarding his license being investigated or have disciplinary imposed on it since he last renewed. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. He provided a brief summary of the procedure and indicated that the complaint against his license is still being investigated. Per the Illinois Dental Board website his license has not been disciplined.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Dr. Badahman's dental license.

Sammons/Sheline Motion carried 10-0-0

4. Tessa Creager, DDS, License No. 12011483A

Dr. Creager appeared as requested with counsel, Michael Gearte, to discuss her yes response regarding an arrest that occurred since she last renewed. Dr. Creager provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. She informed the Board that she has pled guilty to 3 criminal charges on April 15, 2024, and that she suffered a panic attack during the incident. She informed the Board that she is currently in counseling and will have fifteen months of home detention followed by one year of criminal probation. She stated that she is the only practitioner for her small practice and requested that the Board not place her on probation as it could be detrimental to the practice.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Dr. Creager's license and refer the matter to the Office of Attorney General.

Glickman/Findley 2-8-0 Glickman and Findley- yay Motion failed.

A motion was made and seconded to renew Dr. Creager's dental license on probation with the following terms:

- Licensee's dentistry license is renewed on Indefinite Probation. Licensee shall not be eligible for probation withdrawal until her criminal probation has been completed.
- Licensee must make Personal Appearances twice annually at Board meetings throughout the duration of the probation.
- Licensee must comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations governing her dentistry license.

Kolkman/Williamson Motion carried 10-0-0 Dr. Creager agreed to the probation terms.

5. William Frounfelter, DDS, License No. 12010991A

Dr. Frounfelter appeared as requested with counsel Laura Iosue to discuss his yes response regarding an arrest that occurred since he last renewed his license. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. He informed the Board that he had resolved all matters with the courts including his criminal probation. Dr. Frounfelter stated that he was required to complete a substance abuse evaluation and an inpatient program per the courts. He stated that he does attend personal counseling and is on a medication treatment.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Dr. Frounfelter's dental license.

Kolkman/Williamson Motion carried 10-0-0

6. Julie Genet, LDH, License No. 13003696A

Ms. Genet appeared as requested via zoom to discuss her yes response regarding an arrest since she last renewed. She provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. She indicated that she will be on criminal probation for her DUI until November 2024.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Ms. Genet's dental hygiene license on probation with the following terms:

- Licensee's dental hygienist license is granted on Indefinite Probation. Licensee shall not be eligible for probation withdrawal until her criminal probation is completed.
- Licensee must comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations governing her dental hygienist license.

Rader/Snoddy Motion carried 10-0-0

Ms. Genet agreed to the probation terms.

7. Stephen Hall, DDS, License No. 12009719A

Dr. Hall appeared with counsel, Mike Holland, as requested to discuss regarding his license being censured, issued a letter of reprimand, received probationary status, had restrictions, or limitations placed upon your ability to perform certain acts within the practice of dentistry since he last renewed. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. He indicated that he was audited by his credentialling company for his coding and record keeping. His counsel provided two letters from the credentialling agency that show the matter has been resolved. The Board inquired into the status of those who reviewed the records, and Dr. Hall did not know the credentials of the reviewer employed by the credentialling company. Dr. Hall indicated that he was doing boiler plate charting, but he has changed his process since.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Dr. Hall's dental license and file a complaint to the Office of Attorney General's Office for further investigation.

Kolkman/Sheline Motion carried 10-0-0

8. Bradley K. Harris, DDS, License No. 12010406A

Dr. Harris appeared as requested via zoom to discuss his yes response regarding a malpractice judgement that has been settled since he last renewed. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. He discussed with the Board the patient procedure and interaction that started in 2008. There have been no other issues.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Dr. Harris' dental license.

Sheline/Sammons
Motion carried 10-0-0

9. Kathleen Laughlin, LDH, License No. 13002469A

Ms. Laughlin did not appear as requested and has not submitted any documentation to address why she indicated yes to the renewal question of an arrest since she last renewed.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to deny Ms. Laughlin's dental hygiene renewal application for failure to provide documentation and appearance.

Williamson/Nowakowski Motion carried 10-0-0

10. Jessica Martinez, LDH, License No. 13008499A

Ms. Martinez appeared as requested to discuss her yes response regarding an arrest that occurred since she last renewed her license. She provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. She informed the Board that her invasion of privacy charges was still pending and gave the Board a summary of what led up to the arrest.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Ms. Martinez's dental hygiene license and file a complaint to the Office of Attorney General's Office for investigation.

Kolkman/Sammons Motion carried 10-0-0

11. Paul Rickard, DDS, License No. 12012843A

Dr. Rickard appeared as requested to discuss his yes response regarding a malpractice judgement that has been settled since he last renewed. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. Dr. Rickard provided a brief description of the extraction procedure, and that the case was settled in June 2023 for \$65,000. He did indicate that his employer had terminated him for the incident, and after he was terminated that the patient was referred to an oral surgeon after he left the practice. He stated that he does not work in Indiana, but currently works for an insurance company in Illinois. Dr. Rickard stated that he did report to the Illinois Dental Board.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Dr. Rickard's dental license.

Sammons/Nowakowski Motion carried 10-0-0

12. Thomas Ringenberg, DDS, License No. 12008932A

Dr. Ringenberg appeared as requested for his appearance and administrative hearing. This matter was addressed during the Administrative Hearing.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to approve Dr. Ringenberg's license renewal.

Kolkman/Findley Motion carried 10-0-0

13. Irene Smith, LDH, License No. 13008969A

Ms. Smith appeared as requested via zoom to discuss her yes response regarding an arrest that occurred since she last renewed. She provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. Ms. Smith indicated that she will be on criminal probation until 2025.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Ms. Smith's dental hygiene license on probation with the following terms:

- Licensee's dental hygienist license is granted on Indefinite Probation. Licensee shall not be eligible for probation withdrawal until her criminal probation is completed.
- As a condition of probation, Licensee shall make a personal appearance before the Board in April 2025 or the next meeting after April 2025 if there is no April 2025 Board meeting. If the probation is terminated prior to this appearance, this provision will be rendered moot, and this provision should not be construed as a reason that the probation may not be removed earlier.
- Licensee must comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations governing her dental hygienist license.

Rader/Snoddy Motion carried 10-0-0

Ms. Smith agreed to the probation and terms.

14. Faith Tribble, LDH, License No. 13008568A

Ms. Tribble appeared as requested via zoom to discuss her yes response regarding an arrest that occurred since she last renewed. She provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. Ms. Tribble discussed her OWI and indicated that she will be on criminal probation until April of 2025.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to renew Ms. Tribble's dental hygiene license on probation with the following terms:

- Licensee's dental hygienist license is granted on Indefinite Probation. Licensee shall not be eligible for probation withdrawal until her criminal probation is completed.
- Licensee must comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations governing her dental hygienist license.

Sammons/Nowakowski Motion carried 10-0-0

Ms. Tribble agreed to the probation and terms.

C. REINSTATEMENT

1. Melody Reveal, DDS, License No. 12010516A

Dr. Reveal appeared as requested via zoom to discuss the reinstatement of her license that expired in 2020. She provided a copy of her continuing education certificates and a statement for the Board to review and indicated that she has a potential job offer in Indiana.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to reinstate Dr. Reveal's dental license.

Wells/Rader Motion carried 10-0-0

2. Terri Grant, LDH, License No. 13001415A

Ms. Grant appeared as requested via zoom to discuss the reinstatement of her license was placed on inactive status in 2016. She provided a copy of her continuing education certificates and a statement for the Board to review. Ms. Grant indicated that her intention is to work as a LDH substitute.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to reinstate Ms. Grant's dental hygiene license.

Rader/Kolkman Motion carried 10-0-0

D. APPLICATION

1. Nicole Downing, DDS

Dr. Downing appeared as requested to discuss her yes response regarding her background. She provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. Dr. Downing gave a brief overview of the circumstances regarding her three arrests, and the outcome with the courts. She indicated that she is currently enrolled in the Indiana Well-Being program. Candace Backer, Indiana Well Being Program, testified on Dr. Downing's behalf. Dr. Downing noted that she is currently on home detention for 1 year, followed by 1 year of criminal probation. She stated that her employer is aware of the situation.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to approve Dr. Downing's application on probation with the following terms:

- Applicant's dentist license is granted on INDEFINITE PROBATION, without right to petition for probation withdrawal until Applicant's IDA Well Being program is complete. The terms of Applicant's probation include the following terms:
- Applicant shall make quarterly personal appearances before the Board each year for as long as his license remains on probation.
- Applicant shall take all reasonable measures to cause IDA Well Being to submit quarterly reports to the Board regarding Applicant's progress in the program.
- Applicant shall comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations governing his dentistry license.
- Applicant's failure to comply with the terms of this decision, and terms of probation, may subject Applicant to a show cause hearing and the imposition of further sanctions.

Kolkman/Findley Motion carried 10-0-0

2. Lacedric Tolliver, DDS

Dr. Tolliver appeared as requested via zoom to discuss his yes response regarding discipline that has occurred in another State or jurisdiction. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review. Dr. Tolliver described the crown and bridge procedure that occurred in Texas, and that it was settled in 2017. He indicated that Texas investigated the matter and imposed discipline. Dr. Tolliver stated that since he held an Illinois license, Illinois mirrored the discipline that was imposed on his Texas license. He stated that he was required to pay a fine and complete additional continuing education to improve his standard of care.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to approve Dr. Tolliver's dental application.

Kolkman/Nowakowski Motion carried 10-0-0

3. David Geer, Send Relief, Inc., Mobile Dental Facility

Mr. Geer appeared as requested via zoom on behalf of Send Relief, MDF. He indicated that their program starts the next day. The Board reviewed the supporting documentation of the application including the list of Indiana dentists, services that will be provided, and how the facility is set up.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to approve Send Relief, Inc. mobile dental facility application.

Kolkman/Rader Motion carried 10-0-0

4. Vesper Institute, CE Provider

April Thomas appeared as requested via zoom for the Vesper Institute. She provided supporting documentation for the Board to review. The Board noted that the Vesper Institute is a PACE provider, which is an automatically approved provider. Ms. Thomas stated that the Vesper Institute will be doing sedation training and wished to ensure that the training they are providing meets Indiana's requirements. The Board discussed Indiana's requirements for sedation training with Ms. Thomas.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to approve the Vesper Institute's CE prodder application on the basis that they are a PACE provider.

Kolkman/Sammons Motion carried 10-0-0

V. ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

A. Thomas Ringenberg, D.D.S., License No. 12008932A

Cause No. 2023 ISBD 0006 Re: Administrative Complaint

Parties Present:

Respondent present with counsel Michael Gearte Brittany McMann, Deputy Attorney General for the State of Indiana Margie Addington, Court Reporter, Accurate Reporting

Participating Board Members:

Robert D. Findley, D.D.S., (Hearing Officer)
Annette J. Williamson, D.D.S.
Richard R. Nowakowski, D.D.S.
R. Daron Sheline, D.D.S.
Edward Sammons, D.D.S.
Twyla Rader, L.D.H.
Matthew Kolkman, D.D.S.
Jeffrey L. Snoddy, D.D.S.
Crunchy Wells, D.M.D
Tammera Glickman, Consumer Member

Case Summary: On or about June 20, 2023 an Administrative Complaint was filed against Dr. Ringenberg with allegations that he performed a treatment or procedure that violates acceptable standards of dental practice, and resulted in failure or was detrimental to the patient. On or about June 4, 2024 the State and Dr. Ringenberg agreed to Joint Stipulation of Facts in the matter. The hearing today is to determine if any further sanctions need to be imposed on Dr. Ringenberg's license.

Ms. McMann stated that there are agreed mitigating factors in this matter. Mr. Gearte stated that Dr. Ringenberg is not arguing on the facts of his violation, but requests that the Board not place Dr. Ringenberg on probation as that would be detrimental to his practice. Mr. Gearte submitted Exhibits A-D, which are certified records of the presurgical procedure records, CE course summary, Copies of the CE certificates of completion, and a letter from Matthew Dass, Chief Operating Officer of Dr. Ringenberg's employment. The Board and State had no questions on the exhibits.

Dr. Ringenberg discussed his current practice in Anderson and the extraction procedure, which led to the complaint. Dr. Ringenberg outlined that to address the complaint, he has completed 94 additional CE training courses, and outlined his new policy and procedures on how extractions occur in his office. Ms. McMann stated that one of the mitigating factors that the State considered is the financial impact it would have to complete all 94 CE training courses. The Board discussed the extraction procedure with Dr. Ringenberg.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to accept the Joint Stipulations of Facts and issue a Letter of Reprimand in the matter of Dr. Ringenberg.

Sheline/Wells Motion 5-5-0 Sammons, Rader, Williamson, Nowakowski and Kolkman- nay Motion failed.

The Board discussed probation terms.

A motion was made and seconded to accept the Joint Stipulations of Facts and issue a Letter of Reprimand and impose a \$1,000 fine in the matter of Dr. Ringenberg.

Kolkman/Sheline 5-5-0 Sammons, Rader, Williamson, Nowakowski and Kolkman- nay Motion failed.

The Board re-opened the hearing to ask Dr. Ringenberg how many violations were imposed against his license. Mr. Gearte noted that there were originally 4 violation counts; however, it was reduced to one. He stated that his client and he are amenable to say 4 counts if the Board would like them to waive that issue. The Board counsel stated that the statue does not allow the Board to waive the violation issue of fines. The Board can only impose \$1,000 per found violation. The Board discussed if they could require volunteer contributions, but Board counsel stated that the Board does not have the statutory authority to request volunteer contributions for this case. Ms. McMann stated that the State could include the investigation costs with the letter of reprimand. Mr. Gearte stated that they would not object to that stipulation. Ms. McMann stated that if the Board wished to go the probation route, it would be difficult for Dr. Ringenberg to demonstrate he remedied the incident since he has already shown that with his completed CE and changes in policy.

A motion was made and seconded to accept the Joint Stipulations of Facts and issue a Letter of Reprimand and impose a \$1,000 fine in the matter of Dr. Ringenberg.

Kolkman/Sheline Motion carried 6-4-0 Sammons, Williamson, Findley and Rader- nay

B. Stephen Trager, D.D.S., License No. 12010793A

10:00 a.m.

Cause No. 2022 ISBD 0008

Re: Petition for Removal of Probation

Parties Present:

Respondent present with counsel Brian Park Margie Addington, Court Reporter, Accurate Reporting

Participating Board Members:

Robert D. Findley, D.D.S., (Hearing Officer) Annette J. Williamson, D.D.S. Richard R. Nowakowski, D.D.S. R. Daron Sheline, D.D.S. Edward Sammons, D.D.S. Twyla Rader, L.D.H. Matthew Kolkman, D.D.S. Jeffrey L. Snoddy, D.D.S. Crunchy Wells, D.M.D Tammera Glickman, Consumer Member

Case Summary: On or about June 20, 2022 the Board granted Dr. Trager's license to renew on probation on the basis that he disclosed he was convicted of a felony arrest. Dr. Trager agreed to the following probation terms:

- Indefinite probation to coincide with the criminal probation
- Random visits by the Board's Compliance Officer

Mr. Park stated that Dr. Trager last appeared before the Board in April of 2022 due to the Domestic felony charge against him. Mr. Park stated that the criminal matter has been resolved and completed by the courts as of April 2024. Mr. Park stated that he understands that there were supposed to be quarterly appearances by the Board's Compliance Officer; however, none were ordered so that could not be completed. Mr. Park stated that Dr. Trager has been seeing a therapist, and they could provide reports to the Board if they would like to see them, but Dr. Trager has never had a patient care issue.

The Board discussed with Dr. Trager the terms that the court imposed upon him for his criminal probation and home detention. Dr. Trager affirmed that he is still a self-employed dentist, and his employment has not changed. Dr. Trager discussed what he learned since the incident occurred. Dr. Trager requested that the Board remove his probation status.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to grant Dr. Trager's petition to withdraw the probation status.

Nowakowski/Sheline Motion carried 10-0-0

VI. APPLICATIONS FOR REVIEW

A. Applications

1. Michael Jones (DDS)

Dr. Jone's application for dental licensure by reciprocity was submitted for review. He indicated yes to the question regarding discipline in another State or jurisdiction. He provided a statement and supporting documentation for the Board to review, In 2014 the Illinois Dental Board disciplined Dr. Jones due to a substance abuse issue. Since that time, he has completed all requirements, and his license is current and in good standing.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to approve Dr. Jones' dental application.

Kolkman/Sheline Motion carried 9-0-1 Williamson not present.

2. Glenys Larreal-Spear (LDH)

Ms. Larreal-Spear's application for dental hygiene by reciprocity was submitted for review. She is currently licensed in the state of Florida but the education she obtained is not a CODA accredited dental hygiene program.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to deny Ms. Larreal-Spear's dental hygiene application by reciprocity based upon IC 25-1-21-5(1)(A) and IC 25-13-1-6(2)(A) because the Florida Dental Board's requirements for a license are not substantially equivalent to or exceed the requirements for an Indiana dental hygiene license because you have not graduated from a school accredited by the Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association.

Kolkman/Sammons 9-0-1 Williamson not present

3. Ledhys J Andrade Regardiz (LDH)

Ms. Andrade Regardiz's application for dental hygiene by reciprocity was submitted for review. She is currently licensed in the state of Florida but the education she obtained is not a CODA accredited dental hygiene program.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to deny Ms. Larreal-Spear's dental hygiene application by reciprocity based upon IC 25-1-21-5(1)(A) and IC 25-13-1-6(2)(A) because the Florida Dental Board's requirements for a license are not substantially equivalent to or exceed the requirements for an Indiana dental hygiene license because you have not graduated from a school accredited by the Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association.

Sammons/Sheline 9-0-1 Williamson not present

B. Continuing Education

There were no CE Applications for review.

VII. DISCUSSION

A. Readoption of Rules – LSA#23-816

828 IAC 0.5-2-3 Dental Fees
 828 IAC 1-2 Dental Hygienists; Licensure by Examination
 828 IAC 1-3 Dentists and Dental Hygienists; Licensure by Endorsement

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to re-adopt 828 IAC 0.5-2-3, 828 IAC 1-2, and 828 IAC 1-3.

Findley/Nowakowski Motion carried 10-0-0

B. Election of Officers - Vice President

The Board discussed the election of a new Vice President. Dr. Nowakowski was nominated.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to appoint Dr. Nowakowski for Vice President.

Sheline/Williamson Motion carried 10-0-0

C. Compliance Fund and Compliance Officers Update

Dr. Findley, Board President, discussed an updated report on the Compliance Fund and Compliance Officers. He inquired into the contracts of the new Compliance Officers which are currently in an internal process with the OAG. The Board discussed the pay of the Compliance Officers and the cap on the pay.

Board Action: A motion was made and seconded to set the pay cap for the Compliance officers at \$100,000 for a two-year period.

Nowakowski/Sheline Motion carried 10-0-0

VIII. REPORTS

A. Office of the Attorney General

The June 2024 OAG report was not presented due to time constraints and was set to be presented at the next meeting.

IX. OLD/NEW BUSINESS

Dr. Findley, Board President, stated that he was requested to go to the Department of Health to discuss the changes with Radiology that were put forth by the ADA. He stated that they reached out to him to provide input as he is both a dentist and Board member. The IDH is going through a rule changing process for this update.

X. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, and having completed its duties, the meeting of the State Board of Dentistry adjourned at 2:11 p.m. by consensus.